
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Tuesday, February 13, 2024 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/3HJtKfH 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition 
A. National School Counseling Week DR. TRACI PIERCE 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board January 24, 2024 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 - 2024 

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Ending December 31, 2023 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending December 31, 2023 

 
6. Communications Follow-up 

 
7. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
8. Reports and Discussions  

A. Strategies to Improve Graduation Rates and Post Secondary Outcomes 
  DR. TRACI PIERCE 

B. Capital Budget Update  VIC ROBERTS 
C. Special Education  MATT SCOTT 

   LEXIE BUSCHBACH 

https://bit.ly/3HJtKfH
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

D. Healthy Youth Survey  MATT SCOTT
  

9. Unfinished Business 
None 
 

10. New Business 
A. Resolution No. 3 2023-2024: Financial Literacy Instruction 

 DR. TRACI PIERCE 
  

11. Next Meeting Agenda 
 
Study Session 
A. Preparation for Interview Phase: Deputy Successor Superintendent 

  
Business Meeting  
A. 2023 – 2024 Budget Update 
B. Middle School Math Pathways Update  
    

12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building  
January 24, 2024 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Micah Valentine, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President; Brittany Gledhill, Board Member; Dr. Josh Miller, Board Member; Michael 
Connors, Board Member; Mallory Dupaquier, Student Representative to the Board; and 
Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the Board.  
 
Student Board Member-Elect: Annie Maltos, excused. 
 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive 
Director of Business Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of 
Communications and Public Relations.  
 
Excused: Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology 
 
Other Guest(s):  K.C. Bennion, Delta High School Principal 

Molly Lutz, Safety and Loss Prevention Specialist 
Christine Benson, Sodexo Nutrition Services Director 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 68 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 School Board Recognition Month 

 
Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce read Governor Inslee’s proclamation naming January 
School Board Recognition Month. Dr. Pierce expressed her appreciation for the Board by 
handing out a certificate from the Washington State School Directors’ Association and a gift 
of gratitude from the Kennewick School District.  

 
 Fall Sports and Activities  
 

Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education Matt Scott introduced Kyle Cowan, Kamiakin 
High School Athletic Director. Mr. Cowan shared the school's many successes: 
conference champions in four fall sports, academic state champions in volleyball and 
cross country, and second place at state for the math club. Mr. Cowan introduced Matt 
Rexus, the Cross-Country Coach. Mr. Rexus shared that the team was the state academic 
champions for the first time in school history and placed second at state.  

  
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 



Minutes 
January 24, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
  
 Genevie Parker commented on math honor classes and how they prepared her for college. 
 
 Tamara Parker requested the reinstatement of honor classes in middle school and noted 

confusion on the wording of advanced and accelerated math classes.  
 
 Blaine Meek spoke about having honor math classes reinstated in middle school.  
 
 Penny Nokes commented on math honor classes in middle school. 
 
 Jessi Robledo commented on math honor classes in middle school. 
 
 Lori Moody commented on math honor classes in middle school. 
 
 Kelsie Davey commented on math honor classes in middle school. 
 
 Dottie Stevens spoke about the ribbon cutting at Ridgeview Elementary and the support 

of Kennewick schools. 
 
 Ron Mabry commented on the status of the State Board of Education decision regarding 

ng graduation pathway waivers.  
 
 Jaxon Clark commented on math honor classes in middle school. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Micah Valentine to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
 Seconded by Mike Connors. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of School Board Meeting December 13, 2023 
• Minutes of School Board Retreat January 10, 2024 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Budget Status Report Ending November 30, 2023 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending November 30, 2023 
• Tri-Tech Architect Selection 
• Foreign Exchange Agencies and Coordinators for the 2024-25 School Year 

 



Minutes 
January 24, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW UP 
 

 Superintendent Dr. Pierce reported that at the January 10 Board retreat the Board discussed 
adding a communications follow-up to the Board agenda to follow up on correspondence 
received since the last Board meeting. Dr. Pierce followed up on the concerns regarding 
honors math in middle schools, cell phone use and Policy 3308, and a reported rumor being 
shared on social media. 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Pierce shared that she attended the Ridge View ribbon cutting and 

recognized all the staff involved and the community for their support in passing the bond. 
 She thanked everyone who gave input by taking the survey or attending one of the focus 

groups regarding the deputy successor superintendent position. She shared that the search 
firm is developing the job description and plans to have it ready to be posted in February. 
Dr. Pierce reported that a scheduling issue with the Delta High School graduation and the 
Three Rivers Convention Center has been resolved, with the Delta High School 
graduation being moved to the HAPO Center in Pasco with the same graduation date of 
June 6. 

 
 Student Representative to the Board, Mallory Dupaquier, reported that there may have been 

some confusion regarding her comments at a previous Board meeting surrounding the 
computer application credit. Mallory clarified that she supports having a computer 
competency requirement.  

 
 Board Member Mike Connors reported attending the ribbon cutting at Ridge View 

Elementary. He also shared that he observed Ms. Woods's class at Eastgate Elementary 
School as she taught the Second Step program. Mr. Connors also stated that he went to 
Olympia to support student Ashwin Joshi as he presented to the Education Committee in the 
House of Representatives in support of HB 1915. 

 
 Board Member Josh Miller reported that the Kamiakin High School robotics program 

placed first at their district meet and will attend state for the first time. Dr. Miller shared that 
he spoke with parents and students in preparation for the February Board discussion on 
school counselors as he is trying to understand the process counselors use to prepare our 
students for graduation and post-graduation plans. 

 
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill reported attending the SEWASA Annual Board 

Workshop. She shared that she also observed Ms. Woods’s class at Eastgate Elementary 
School to see the curriculum being taught through Second Step and talked with the safety 
officer at the school. Ms. Gledhill stated that she met with Jeremy Fox, principal at Horse 
Heaven Hills Middle School, who answered many questions and gave her a tour of the 
school.  

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending the interview with Bill Jordan regarding 

the new deputy successor superintendent position and had a chance to speak with parents 
and teachers regarding the Second Step program.  



Minutes 
January 24, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith reported attending the Ridge View ribbon cutting. He also shared 

that he observed a class at Eastgate Elementary School where a Second Step lesson was 
being taught. In addition, he stated that he met with the principals at Amon Creek and 
Cottonwood Elementary Schools and met with Bill Jordan regarding the deputy successor 
superintendent position.  

 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Delta High School 
  

Dr. Pierce introduced Delta High School Principal K.C. Bennion, who presented an annual 
update on the school, which is a partnership among the Kennewick, Richland, and Pasco 
school districts. Ms. Bennion reported that the school has an enrollment of 413 students, 
including 141 students from Kennewick.  

 
 Nutrition Services 
  

Christine Benson, Sodexo Nutrition Services Director, provided an annual report which 
included information on meal count comparisons, summer school, and the Community 
Eligibility Provision (CEP) program, and the upcoming Kennewick Future Chef 
competition. She also presented feedback from the student survey, and shared revenue and 
expense information for the last five years.  
 

 Staff Safety 
  

Mollie Lutz presented an annual safety report focusing on Safe Schools training, Labor & 
Industries (L&I) claims, and “time loss.”  

 
 Boundary Update 
  

Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education Matt Scott presented a recap on the recent 
boundary adjustment and shared an update on communications, implementation plans, 
enrollment projections, and next steps.  
 

 
HB 1915 Making Financial Education Instruction a Graduation Prerequisite and a Required 
Component of Public Education 

  
School Board members discussed House Bill 1915, Making Financial Education Instruction 
a Graduation Prerequisite, and a Required Component of Public Education. Following 
Board discussion, Dr. Pierce agreed to draft a resolution supporting financial literacy for the 
Board to review at the next Board meeting. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 



Minutes 
January 24, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 

 
President Galbraith announced a five-minute break at 7:42 p.m. The Board reconvened at 7:49 
p.m. 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Instructional Materials Committee Recommendation: Second Step 
  
 Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire shared background 

information and an overview of Second Step materials for K-8, together with the 
Instructional Materials Committee review process and recommendation. Following Board 
discussion, the Board asked for access to the digital program so that they could personally 
review the material prior to making a decision at a future Board meeting.  

 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Study Session 
1. Comprehensive School Counseling Program 

 
B. Business Meeting 

1. Strategies to Improve Graduation Rates and Post-Secondary Outcomes 
2. Capital Budget Update 
3. Special Education 
4. Healthy Youth Survey 
  

 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 8:56 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  February 13, 2024 
 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Ken Brager Chinook MS Team - MS Requesting LOA (1st) 1.0 2024-25

Donna Osborne District Nurse 1.0 8/20/2024
Jill Pfeiffer SrHS Teacher - HS 1.0 6/30/2024
Rebecca Broadbent Hawthorne Teacher - Elem 1.0 6/30/2024

Rosa Ontiveros Eastgate Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2024
Kristen Wuttig Lincoln Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2024
Alexandria Vargas Westgate Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/20/2024

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE:    Tuesday, February 13, 2024

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE
REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

2/13/2024 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Kayla Hull Chinook Cook Program Need 6.0 2/12/2024

Elizabeth Todd Washington
Para/SS/Tier III Autism/1-1 

Support
Student Need 6.5 2/9/2024

Lee Watson Kamiakin Para/SS/Tier II Autism Program Need 6.0 2/14/2024

Chandler Schulz Washington Para/SS/Tier III Autism Replaces Cristina Gonzalez 6.5 1/29/2024

Cynthia Muniz Vista Para/BE Replaces Becky Kranz 6.5 2/12/2024

Rosa Medina Southgate Elementary Lead Cook Replaces Lourdes Bell 6.0 2/12/2024

Jordan Ziemba Cascade Para/SS/Tier III Autism Replaces Stephanie Loper 6.0 2/2/2024

Avery Winter Tri-Tech Kitchen Manager Replaces Beth Wilson 6.0 2/5/2024

Jamo Caulder
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Security Personnel Replaces Jesse Sandbeck 8.0 2/9/2024

Jarid Leighty Transportation Bus Driver 4.58 2/8/2024

Brenda Otonicar Cascade Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Amri Chaney 6.0 2/22/2024

Scott Searing Kennewick Para/SS/Tier III Autism Replaces Matthew Bartlett 6.5 2/12/2024

Robert Rodriguez Kennewick Para/SS/Tier III Autism Replaces Seth Michael 6.5 2/21/2024

Elizabeth Ellerson Highlands Cook Replaces May Golaga 6.0 1/29/2024

Deyanira Shaw Canyon View Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 1/25/2024

Roberto Lopez Southridge Security Personnel 8.0 2/9/2024

Nichole Salazar Cottonwood Lead Cook 6.0 1/29/2024

James Soule Kennewick Para/FP/LAP 6.0 2/9/2024

Jacqueline Garcia Edison Para/SS/Tier II Behavior 6.0 2/21/2024

Patty Valero Fuerza Para/FP/BE/Bilingual 6.5 2/1/2024

Juliana Furniss Hawthorne Para/SS/LifeSkills To sub para 6.5 2/16/2024

Tony Judkins Transportation Bus Driver 5.0 3/5/2024

Carol Dickson Canyon View Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 2/9/2024

Elsa Young Amon Creek Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 6.5 2/2/2024

Erica Belcher Kamiakin Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 3/1/2024

NEW POSITONS

RESIGNATION

REPLACEMENT

REHIRE

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: February 13, 2024

2/13/2024 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Dana Berkey Southridge Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 2/2/2024

Brianna Niles Hawthorne Para/FP/LAP To student teach 6.0 1/29/2024

Hong Mei Crisp N/A Para Extended up to one year N/A 11/10/2023

Cristina Gonzalez Washington Para/SS/Tier III Autism 6.5 2/2/2024

Gary Johnson Facilities Services Custodial Supervisor 8.0 3/8/2024

Lisa Johnson
Transportation/ 

Warehouse
Custodian/Swing 8.0 3/8/2024

Dorothy Oneal Transportation Bus Attendant 4.67 6/30/2024

Susan Robinson Sage Crest Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 3/8/2024

Cynthia Swart Highlands Kitchen Manager 7.5 3/29/2024

RETURN FROM LOA

RESIGNATION CONT.

TERMINATION

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RETIREMENT

2/13/2024 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Tuesday,  February 13, 2024 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS Lucas Guerrero Kennewick HS Assistant Track Replaces Robbi Fiocchi  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Josh Pasma Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Replaces Amanda Cain - .75 FTE  
2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 James Dell Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Replaces Jacqueline Brown - .75 FTE  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Kevin Ireland Kamiakin HS Assistant Baseball Replaces Scott Biglin - .5 FTE  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
 Tiara Harley Kennewick HS Asstistant Track One Year LOA 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Cheryl Yoke SOUTHRIDGE HS Assistant Track Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Amanda Cain Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Brandon Searls Chinook MS Head Baseball Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 





































 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: February 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Strategies to Improve Graduation Rates and Post Secondary Outcomes  
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
X 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Our district mission focused on ensuring students graduate prepared for success in post-
secondary, education, work and life. Our vision focuses on helping students reach their 
highest potential, and our “All students are ready for their future” goal speaks to students 
graduating with a plan for postsecondary. We will review available post secondary 
outcome data and current strategies we employ in our system to help students prepare 
for graduation and post secondary. The Board will have the oppotunity to discuss their 
desired outcomes and interests related to improvement.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• What positive patterns and trends does the data show? What negative patterns and 
trends?  

• What are the strengths and areas of concern related to current strategies? 
• What outcomes would the Board like to see? 
• What interests does the Board have in terms of strengthening and/or expanding 

strategies for improvement? 
 

Next Steps  • The Board provides direction to help inform system improvements.  
  



Strategies to 
Improve 
Graduation 
Rates and Post 
Secondary 
Outcomes

February 13, 2024



Topic Overview 





Presentation Outline 

• Current Data 
• Graduation Data
• Post Secondary Outcome Data

• Current Strategies

• Board Discussion, Interests, and Direction



Graduation Outcome Data 

Reviewed at the December 13, 2023 Board Meeting 



Class of 2022 & 2023: Four-Year Graduation Rate

11.60%

10.40%

10.60%

11%

77.80%

78.70%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

2022

2023

Graduate

Continue

Drop-out



Classes of 2022 & 2023: 
Four-Year Graduation Rate
Demographics

84%

74%

100% 100%

85%
90%

76%

50%

79% 80%80%
75%

100%

71%

89% 87%

72%

88%

77% 80%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Female Male X American
Indian/Alaska

Native

Asian Black/African
American

Hispanic/Latino Native
Hawaiian/Other
Pacific Islander

Two or More
Races

White

2023 2022



Class of 2022 & 2023: Four-Year Graduation Rate
Program Participation

65%

81%

73%

88%

79% 79%
75%

78%

60%

81%

67%

80%

72%

88%

74%
79%

75%
78%

57%

81%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ELL Non-ELL Low Income Non-Low
Income

Migrant Non-Migrant 504 Non-504 Disabilities Non-Disabilities

2023 2022



Four-Year Graduation Rate Trend
District 

74.5 77.1 78 78.6 77.2 76.8 77 79.5 82.3
77.8 78.7

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

District



Class of 2022: Five -Year Graduation Rate

10.20%

13%

3%

3.30%

86.80%

83.70%

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00% 100.00%

2022

2021

Graduate

Continue

Drop Out



Class of 2021 & 2022: Five -Year Graduation Rate
Demographics

88% 85%

69% 67%

97%

85%
75%

85% 88%88%
83%

78%
89% 91%

83%

71%
82%

88%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Female Male Black/African
American

American
Indian/Alaskan

Native

Asian Hispanic/Latino Native
Hawaiian/Other
Pacific Islander

Two or More
Races

White

2022 2021



Class of 2021 & 2022: Five -Year Graduation Rate
Program Participation

77%

88%
81%

95%

82%
88%

79%

87%
79%

88%

76%

87% 88%
94%

83% 86%
81%

86%

97%

86%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ELL Non-ELL Low Income Non-Low
Income

Migrant Non-Migrant 504 Non-504 Disabilities Non-
Disabilities

2022 2021



Five -Year Graduation Rate Trend
District 

79.5 81.3 83 82.2 83.6 82.1 81 82
85.3 86.8

83.7

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

District



Post Secondary Outcome Data 



Education Research & Data Center 
(ERDC) 

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: First Year Enrollment 

Definition
First year enrollment is defined as having an enrollment record at 
a postsecondary institution at some point in academic year 
following graduation, which is defined as the summer term 
immediately following graduation through spring term of the next 
calendar year. If a student enrolled at a 2-year and a 4-year 
institution in the year, they are categorized as a 4-year enrollee.

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: First Year Enrollment
Enrollment by Institution Type

Definitions
• 2-Year / Community Technical College (CTC) includes all 

Washington and out-of-state private and publicly funded 2- year 
institutions. 

• 4-year includes all Washington and out-of-state (OOS) private and 
publicly funded 4- year institutions. 

• Not Enrolled means that an enrollment record was not found in any 
of the data sources. Students that enroll in apprenticeship programs 
administered by the WA State Dept of Labor & Industries are not 
included in this group. They are not reported separately, however, 
because they account for less than 0.5% of high school graduates 
and rarely exceed the redaction threshold.

erdc.wa.gov



First Year Enrollment 
Kennewick School District 

erdc.wa.gov



First Year Enrollment 
KSD Comprehensive High Schools 

erdc.wa.gov



First Year Enrollment  
Comparison Districts 

erdc.wa.gov



Enrollment by Institution Type
Kennewick School District 

erdc.wa.gov



Enrollment by Institution Type
KSD Comprehensive High Schools

erdc.wa.gov



Enrollment by Institution Type
Comparison Districts

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: Pre-College/Remedial Course Taking 

Definition
Pre-college courses, also referred to as remedial or 
developmental courses, are courses used by institutions to 
prepare students for college-level Math and English courses.

erdc.wa.gov



Pre-College/Remedial Course Taking Rates
Kennewick School District  

erdc.wa.gov



Pre-College/Remedial Course Taking Rates
KSD Comprehensive High Schools 

erdc.wa.gov



Pre-College/Remedial Course Taking Rates
Comparison Districts  

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: Persistence/Retention 

Definitions
Persistence is defined as continued enrollment at any institution 
in the second year after high school graduation. 

Retention is defined as continued enrollment in at least one of 
the same institutions during the students’ first and second years 
of enrollment.

erdc.wa.gov



College Persistence/Retention Rates 
Kennewick School District 

erdc.wa.gov



College Persistence/Retention Rates 
KSD Comprehensive High Schools 

erdc.wa.gov



College Persistence/Retention Rates 
Comparison Districts

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: Postsecondary Completion

Definitions
• Post-secondary completion is defined as having earned a degree or certificate at a postsecondary institution or 

completion of an apprenticeship program at some point in the eight academic years following high school graduation. If 
a student earns more than one degree or certificate during the eight year period, the highest degree level attained is 
reported.

• Apprenticeship includes completions in apprenticeship programs administered by the WA State Department of Labor 
and Industries. Apprenticeship completion is only reported at the state level because there are not adequate numbers 
of apprenticeship program completers to meet redaction criteria at the school and district level. Certificates include 
any completion of a certificate program at a 2- year institution.

• Associate degrees include completions of all types of associate’s degrees (Direct Transfer Agreement, Transfer 
Degree, Applied Sciences, etc.) In this metric, if a student earns a bachelor’s degree after completing an associate 
degree, they are only counted in the Bachelor’s degree category.

• Bachelor’s degrees include completions of a 4-year degree. This category also contains Applied Baccalaureate Degrees 
offered at some 2 Year / CTCs.

• Graduate degrees include any post baccalaureate degree (Masters, Professional Doctoral Degrees (JD, MD), Academic 
Doctoral Degrees (PhD)).

erdc.wa.gov



Highest Postsecondary Credential Earned within 
8 Years of High School Graduation 
Kennewick School District 

erdc.wa.gov



Highest Postsecondary Credential Earned within 
8 Years of High School Graduation 
KSD Comprehensive High Schools

erdc.wa.gov



Highest Postsecondary Credential Earned within 
8 Years of High School Graduation
Comparison Districts 

erdc.wa.gov



Metric: Earnings

Definitions
• The Washington State Employment Security Department provided 

Unemployment Insurance (UI) wage records for individuals employed in 
Washington. We display earnings measures for all cohort members who are 
employed in Washington, have wage records (federal employees, independent 
contractors, and others do not have UI wage records), and are NOT enrolled in a 
post-secondary institution during the calendar year.

• Earnings are displayed for years after high school graduation. Earnings data is 
available through 2021. Instead of reporting earnings by calendar year, we report 
earnings by years after graduation. This is done to maximize the number of 
schools, districts, and award levels that we can display: “1 year after graduation” 
contains sixteen years of inflation-adjusted earnings data (2006-2021). The 
matrix below shows the graduation year across the columns, the earnings years 
along the rows, and the “Year(s) after Graduation” in the cells.

erdc.wa.gov



Median Earnings of High School Graduates 
after Graduation
Statewide 

erdc.wa.gov



Median Earnings of High School Graduates 
after Graduation
Kennewick School District 

erdc.wa.gov



SchooLinks Data 



SchooLinks Analytics 



SchooLinks Analytics 



SchooLinks Analytics 



Current 
Strategies to 
Improve 
Outcomes 



Current Strategies Connected to Graduation 
and Post Secondary Outcomes  

Graduation Requirements and the 
High School Instructional Program

High School and Beyond Plan
24-credit requirement
Graduation Pathways 

Communication, Education, and 
Engagement Strategies 

Informational and Educational Events
Communication Efforts  

Programs and Services 

High School Options 
Supports for Graduation & Post Secondary Preparation
Comprehensive School Counseling Program 

Student and Family Engagement 



Board Questions 

• Could you include total numbers of students on the slides 
showing Classes of 2022 & 2023 Four-Year and Five-Year 
Graduation Rate Demographics and Program Participation? 

• Our dropout rate says 10%, what are the reasons?



Board Discussion



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: February 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Capital Project Fund Update   
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
X 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
X 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

The Capital Project Fund update is part of cycle of annual budget updates/presentations 
for the Board. The goal is to inform the Board of the status of the Capital Fund and provide 
a list of capital project priorities that staff have identified as needing to be addressed. In 
addition, a review of current funding measures and state construction assistance program 
funding eligibility is provided, as it helps to inform the timing of a future bond measure. 
Proposals regarding currently thinking related to future funding measures is shared.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

 System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there concerns or questions regarding the 2023-24 and 2024-25 capital project 
priorities? 

• Given all of the information shared, are there questions or concerns regarding the 
current thinking of a future Bond measure not being considered until after the 2026 
levies?  

Next Steps  • The Board provides any immediate direction. In the future, the Board will need to 
decide the timing and scope of a future Bond measure. 
 



Capital Project Fund 
Update

February 13, 2024



Topic 
Overview 



Funding Large Capital Projects  

• Generally, projects costing >$250K are be funded out of the Capital Fund.

• If the General Fund is in good financial position, projects with costs <$500K are 
evaluated and possibly funded from the General Fund.
o The district was allocated $58.7M of ESSER funding. This funding allowed for 

projects to be funded out of the General Fund over the past few years, 
although the projects were not funded directly with ESSER.

• Property purchases are funded out of the Capital Fund, unless a program has 
specific funding in General Fund to use. 

• The budget outlook for the next few years means limited use of General Fund for  
capital projects. 

3



Capital Fund

4

• Funding comes from voter-approved bond proceeds, state construction assistance 
program (SCAP) funding, investment interest earnings, and any funding 
transferred in from the General Fund. 
o Voters approved a Capital Technology Levy to fund instructional technology 

(student devices and other curriculum technology related to instruction). 
o Annual funds collected from the Technology Levy for years 2024, 2025, 2026 

are $4.5M, $4.75M, and $5.0M respectively. These funds are deposited in the  
Capital Fund. 

• SCAP funds are state “matching” funds allocated to projects eligible for state 
construction/modernization. Generally, 50% - 60% of a school project is matched if 
the state formula shows the district needs additional square footage based on 
enrollment.
o The state SCAP formula indicates the district is not eligible for SCAP funding 

for K-8 construction of additional square footage.



5



Capital Projects
2023-24 & 2024-25

6

Project Description Estimated Cost
School Site Infrastructure Development around district properties (Reata school sites & 

Ridgeline Drive adjacent to D-Hills) – district to pay share of 
infrastructure costs (roads & utilities).

Earmark $2.0M - $3.0M for these costs. 
Unsure when projects will be 
completed/district to be billed. 

Paving/Sealcoating/Crack Fill Phase I – Summer 2024
Kamiakin Bus Loop-sub base/asphalt failing.
Kamiakin Parking Lot Off Gym across from tennis courts–
Sealcoat
Southridge Parking Lots – Overlay/Sealcoat
Fuerza Playground – Replace grass area with asphalt play area.

Phase II – Summer 2025 – Evaluating
Projects from above not completed
Horse Heaven Hills Parking Lot – Off 36th Ave
Lampson Parking Lot 

Last spring Kamiakin projects were bid 
out, cost $400K, bid rejected as only one 
bid. District is losing ground on parking 
lot upkeep. Increase project scope. Cost 
could be $1.0M - $1.5M.  

Playground Eastgate – Fall surface replacement & play structure Started 2023 – to finish 2024 $180K

IT Server Room Cooling System erratic during summer months. Phased in project over two years – spring 
2024 and 2024-25: $300K

Fencing Evaluating - Various – Early Learning/Washington/Sage Crest Spring/Summer 2024 $125K

Athletic Scoreboards LaPierre Field (Baseball)/Southridge Football/Soccer Spring/summer 2024: $25,000 each

Lampson Sound System System components failing. Spring 2024 - $30K

Board Room – Audio Visual Components Rack Failing – 20 years old – Cabling – Connectors 
– Adapters – Computer Integration

Spring 2024 - $90K

Tri-Tech Modernization Architect – Schematic Design Spring 2024 - Negotiating Contract

Roofs Kamiakin buildings are priority. Have addressed two buildings. 
Other schools on list for patch work.  

Summer 2025: $500,000 - $1,000,000

Heating/Ventilation/Air 
Conditioning (HVAC)

No major system replacement – normally look for grant $’s to 
help fund.  Do have some systems where change out of failing 
units occurs.

Change out of units – as needed -
evaluating.



SOUTHRIDGE HIGH SCHOOL

Overlay

Crack Fill/ 
Seal Coat

Crack Fill/ 
Seal Coat

New 
Asphalt

FUERZA ELEMENTARY

KAMIAKIN HIGH SCHOOL

DEMO/ 
REPLACEMENT

ADDITIONAL
PARKING/ 
LANDSCAPING

Seal Coat/Paving Projects – Summer 2024



8

District Funding Measures
Education/Programs & Operations (EP&O) and Technology Levies
• The current Technology Levy & EP&O Levy expire in 2026.
• Renewal of these levies are proposed for a February 2026 ballot measure. 
• The 2023 EP&O levy was significantly reduced to garner more voter support, given the 

2022 levy failures.
• Significant increases to levy amounts are needed in future proposal to voters.

Bond 
• The last Bond was in 2019. Funded projects are complete.
• For K – 8, the district does not currently qualify for SCAP funding for adding additional 

square footage.
• If school is 90,000 square feet and plans to make it 110,000 square feet, there would be no SCAP 

funding to offset the cost of the additional 20,000 square feet to be added. 
• In summer 2023, the Facility Executive Committee walked through buildings becoming 

eligible for SCAP funding within next 10 years.
•  (Highlands/Washington/Hawthorne/Vista/Park/Horse Heaven Hills/Edison).

• We are in the process of the annual update of the 10-Year Capital Plan
• Facility Executive Committee Meets: February/April
• Present Plan to Board – Spring 2024



9

Propose Timing of Next District 
Funding Measures

EP&O/Tech Levy Timeline For Four-Year Levy Cycle

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

EP&O Levy
Tech Levy

EP&O Levy
Tech Levy

2026:     Renewal of 4-year EP&O and Technology Levies
2027, 28 or 29: Proposed timing for next Bond measure
2030:     Renewal of 4-year EP&O and Technology Levies

Bond?



2019 Bond Project Chart
October 28, 2018 Board Meeting
Updated With Current/Projected

10

Projects Estimated Cost (2018)
(in Millions)

State Assistance Local 
Share

Kennewick High $112   $110   $56    $56 $56

Amistad Phase II $18   $17.0 $8   $8.75 $10

Ridge View $30 $32.5M $15   $9.5 $15

Elementary 18 $30  Enrollment Driven $15  $0 Not Eligible $15

Property Acquisition $ 5   $9.27 $ 0      $0 $ 5

Capital Improvements $ 5   $2.2 $ 0      $0 $ 5

Kamiakin Project $17   $17.2 $ 4   $4.8M $13

Southridge Project $17  $25.5 HVAC $ 6 $6.67M $11

TOTAL $234 $104 $130
Use of Capital Fund ($5)
ADJUSTED TOTAL $125



11

Sage Crest New Play Area – Sept 2023 ECEAP Portable – Moved To ECEAP Summer 2023

Ridge View – December 2023



Board Member Questions 

• When does KSD’s enrollment threshold get to where we are 
eligible for SCAP funding again?

• Do vacant properties like Fruitland count as part of the 
district’s square footage?

• Do we have projections from the City on population growth 
and timeline?

• What would be the process to move Phoenix HS to the 
Legacy campus? Does this fall under the capital fund 
balance?

• Are we able to utilize the fund balance to support 
projects? I thought we talked about it as a board previously 
that we would discuss how to utilize the money in the 
balance.

12



Discussion & Questions 



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: February 13, 2024 

 

 

Topic Special Education   
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
X 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
X 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

This annual program update provides the Board with information on the district’s special 
services programs, enrollment, inclusion rates, and improvement efforts. Data related to 
safety and behavioral supports for students will be shared, along with parent engagement 
efforts.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

 Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• N/A 
 

Next Steps  • N/A 
  



Special Education

February 13, 2024



Topic 
Overview 





2023-2024 Annual Objectives
Special Services 

• We will provide learning opportunities to all building administrators focused on inclusionary 
practices.  

• We will continue to provide support for schools in developing multi-tiered systems of support 
(MTSS) to meet the learning needs of all students. 

• We will continue to provide professional development for engaging rigorous instruction.



Special Services Staff Overview

• 10 Preschool Teachers
• 57 Tier I Resource Room and Structured Learning Teachers
• 15 Tier II Inclusion Autism and Behavior
• 31 Tier III Self-Contained Autism and Life Skills

Certificated Staff

• 7 Occupational/Physical Therapists
• 25 Speech Therapists
• 15 School Psychologists + 2 School Psychologist Interns
• 1 Teacher of the Visually Impaired
• Contracted Educational Audiologist (via ESD 123)
• Contracted Teacher of the Deaf (via ESD 123)

Itinerant Staff

• 2 Educational Specialists
• 1 Middle School Behavior Teacher
• 1 Board Certified Behavior Analyst
• 2 Mental Health Intervention Specialists
• 2 Paraeducators

Intervention Team 



Special Education Enrollment Overview 



% Special Education Students

During the 2023 
Legislative session, 
the State Legislature 

raised the funding cap 
from 13.5% to 15.0%



Special Services Continuum of Services

Tier I:
Resource Room

Tier II: 
Inclusion Autism & 

Behavior

Tier III:
Life Skills and 

Autism

Out of District 
Placements

Least Restrictive Most Restrictive



Special Programs within the 
KSD Continuum

Program/Ages 
Served

Students Served Description

Preschool
Ages 3-5

KDC and ECEAP Provides early intervention programming for students with special needs.

Resource Room (Tier I) 
Grades K-12

All Schools Serves students with identified disabilities in small groups or general education 
classrooms with instructional supports to provide access to the general 
education setting.

Structured Learning
Grades 2-5

Edison Serves students who are functioning in the low/low average range of 
intellectual ability and have deficits in the areas of academic functioning that 
impact their ability to benefit from the general education setting but for whom 
life skills is too restrictive.

Inclusion Autism (Tier II)
Grades K-12

Amon Creek, Southgate, Hawthorne, Sunset View, 
Cascade, Westgate

Chinook

Kamiakin

Serves students who have deficits in the areas often associated with autism 
spectrum disorder. The students in this program benefit from both special 
education and general education settings. 



Special Programs within the 
KSD Continuum

Program Students Served Description
Inclusion Behavior (Tier II)
Grades K-5 

Canyon View, Washington, Ridgeview, 
Edison, Amistad, Vista

Serves students both in the special education and general education who benefit 
from behavioral supports and skill development to access their education.  

Autism (Tier III)
Grades K-12

Lincoln, Washington, Southgate, Amon 
Creek

Desert Hills

Kennewick 

Serves students who have significant needs that are often associated with autism 
spectrum disorder. The students in this program require highly structured 
environments and supports generally provided in the special education setting.

Life Skills (Tier III)
Grades K-12

Sagecrest, Cottonwood, Canyon View, 
Amistad, Hawthorne

Horse Heaven Hills, Chinook, Highlands

Kennewick, Kamiakin, and Southridge

Serves students who possess moderate to severe intellectual disability who require 
instruction and supports that are most frequently provided within a self-contained 
setting.

Community and Employment 
Transition Program (CET)
Ages 18-21

Fruitland/Kennewick High Portable
Serves students ages 18-21 to develop the skills to transition to post-secondary work, 
living, community participation and future training. 

Out of District Placements 14 Students
Candy Mountain Academy = 5 Students
Pasco Deaf Education Program = 8 Students
Non-Public Agency Placement = 1 Student



Special Services 
Teacher Staffing 

by Program

Programs 

To
ta

l S
tu

de
nt

 
En

ro
llm

en
t

&
Te

ac
he

r t
o 

St
ud

en
t 

Ra
tio

Pr
es

ch
oo

l

El
em

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
oo

l

M
id

dl
e 

Sc
ho

ol

H
ig

h 
 S

ch
oo

l 

Keewaydin Discovery Center 160 1 : 16 10
ECEAP 27 1:27 1
Tier I – Resource Room 1518 1 : 27.6 18 17 20
Structured Learning 24 1 : 12 2
Tier II – Inclusion Autism 113 1 : 12.6 6 1 2
Tier II – Inclusion Behavior 44 1 : 7.3 6
Tier III – Autism 109 1 : 9.9 8 1 2
Tier III – Life Skills & CET 234 1 : 11.7 9 4 7



What is Inclusion?

Least Restrictive Environment (LRE)
LRE is the measure of the percent of a school day a student with a disability 
spends in general educations settings with non-disabled peers.

There are 3 Main IEP LRE Categories:
LRE 1: Placed in general education for 80–100% of the school day
LRE 2: Placed in general education for 40–79% of the school day
LRE 3: Placed in general education for 0–39% of the school day 



Inclusion Rate Trend Over Time

Highlights:
• Currently in the State of WA 

65.1% LRE 1 (+1.7 % increase).
• Currently in KSD 51.6% LRE 1 

(+2% increase).
• Our Key Performance Indicator: 

Increasing LRE 1 by > 3% each 
year, over the next four years.



Efforts to Improve the KSD Inclusion Rate

• Four learning sessions for building leadership focused on LRE and 
inclusionary practices.

• School Improvement Plan (SIP) goals focused on building LRE data
• Special Education Administrator data dashboard to track and monitor LRE 

improvements by building.
• Ongoing, monthly meetings with building principal to identify building 

needs and build capacity to develop inclusionary practices.
• Ongoing, monthly special education teacher job-alike meetings with time 

focused on developing inclusionary practices.
• Inclusionary Practices Teacher Cohort
• Teacher Book Study: Shift to Student Led
• Participation in the Preschool Inclusion Champions Grant



Safety and Behavioral Supports 

Assessing & Responding to Safety Concerns:
• Data collection, analysis and intervention
• Establishing debrief protocols following, isolation/restraint and other safety incidents.
• Targeted, building/program specific CPI and de-escalation training for staff.
 

Behavior Supports:
• Candy Mountain Academy is a program option on our continuum of services.
• The intervention team continues to support students and programs, district wide.
• Middle School Behavior Teacher was hired and is currently supporting students in all 5 middle schools.
• Ongoing consultation from regional practitioners



Parent Engagement
All families are key partners

• Meeting Frequency:  
• Quarterly, or more, determining on need. 

• Recent Membership/Participation:      
• 5-8 Families representing students 

from preschool to high school. 
• Always seeking new participants

• Topics/Connections to our Work:
• Feedback on communication and 

presentations 
• Website Input
• Program Names
• General Feedback – identifying 

strengths and opportunities for growth
Join Us!



Board Member Questions 

• Certified Staff for Tier III is twice that of Tier II. Do we have twice the number of Tier III 
students, or is this due to state mandated ratios?

• To what is the steady increase of special education students attributed? Could we have 
information on the special education students over the years? What percentage are Tier I, Tier 
II, Tier III?

• Any idea for the increase in special education students? Is this just a result of more 504's and 
IEP’s?

• Are there any schools that do not host a Tier II or Tier III Special Education program? How is it 
decided which schools will host which programs?

• Thank you for the slide detailing staffing requirements for each program. Is this strictly 
teachers, or do these numbers also include Paraeducators?



Discussion & Questions



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: February 13, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

Topic Healthy Youth Survey  
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
X 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
X 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Board members have expressed concern about the administration of the Healthy Youth 
Survey. Staff are providing information about the Healthy Youth Survey, why it is given, 
and how the data is used.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

 System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
X Communication  
X Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there benefits with the district participationg in the Healthy Youth Survey? 
• Are there problems with the district participating in the Healthy Youth Survey?  
• Does the Board want to consider directing the district not to participate? 
• Are there positive and/or negative implications for not participating?  

 
Next Steps  • The Board provides direction and determines potential future Board action.  

  



Healthy Youth Survey

December 13, 2023



Topic 
Overview 



Presentation Outline

• Healthy Youth Survey Definition and Information
• Healthy Youth Survey Purpose and Goals 
• School and District Participation and Use of Data
• Board Questions and Discussion 



What is the Healthy Youth Survey?

• A collaborative effort of the Office of Supt. of Public Instruction, 
Department of Health, the Health Care Authority – Division of 
Behavioral Health and Recovery, and the Liquor and Cannabis Board.

• It provides survey results about the health of adolescents in 
Washington.

• This information is used by a variety of agencies to guide policy and 
programs that serve youth.

• The Healthy Youth Survey is given every two years.

Source: askhys.net

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://www.thebluediamondgallery.com/handwriting/s/survey.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


What are the stated goals of the Healthy 
Youth Survey?

• To deliver crucial information about the prevalence of major adolescent health risk 
behaviors to parents, the public, school officials, public health professionals, human 
service agencies and policymakers.

• To identify trends and patterns in adolescent health and risky behaviors, supporting the 
examination and evaluation of many different prevention, safety, and health promotion 
initiatives.

• To guide policy formation and improve program needs assessments of state agencies, 
local health jurisdictions, county prevention programs, community mobilization coalitions, 
and community public health and safety networks that serve youth.

• The survey also produces an analytic dataset for use by approved researchers and 
provides data to various community stakeholders for use in federal, state, local, or private 
agency grant applications.

Source: askhys.net

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC

https://www.whatsageek.com/geek/whats-a-geeks-great-geek-census-of-2016
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/


How is the survey administered?

• Schools register for the survey.
• Schools must notify parents and students and provide opt out information 

prior to receiving the survey link for students.
• Students not taking the survey must be provided an alternative activity.
• Schools designate a day and particular class period to conduct the survey 

in the fall.
• Survey is proctored with instructions by a staff member but taken 

electronically. 
• Survey takes about 50 minutes to complete.
• Results are released to schools in February or March.

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC

https://www.whatsageek.com/geek/whats-a-geeks-great-geek-census-of-2016
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/


What questions are students being 
asked?

• Questions include items about demographics, unintentional and 
intentional injuries; physical activity and dietary behaviors; 
alcohol, tobacco and other drug use; and related risk and 
protective factors.

• Grade 8, 10 and 12 surveys include questions about sexual 
behavior and abuse. Districts can submit an exemption request 
not to ask these questions. 

• We requested and received exemption for the fall 2023 survey.
• Surveys are available for preview at askhys.net 



How are survey results used? 

• Kennewick School District:
oSome schools use the information to augment information from our 

annual district student survey.
oSome schools report the survey results are not used for anything.
oThe district looks at the results and shares them with partner agencies.

• State and County Agencies:
oProvides information  for policy and program development.
oProvides information to guide resource allocation.
oAllows for trend analysis.
oProvides data sets to aid in research.

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed 
under CC BY-SA

https://www.picpedia.org/chalkboard/r/results.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


Why does the district participate in the 
survey?

• The survey has been conducted across the state since 2002. 
• Our district has historically administered the survey.
• Districts are encouraged to participate.
• The survey is a biennial event. 
• Student participation is voluntary and anonymous. Students 

may also decline to answer questions that are included in the 
survey.



Board Member Questions 

• What does our district specifically do with this data?
• Which partner agencies do we sharing the data with?
• Did we notify parents and give them an opt out? 
• Are schools required to register for the survey?
• Healthy Youth Survey website indicates that small districts take the survey in 7th and 9th, in 

addition to 6, 8, 10, why is that?
• KSD administers the test every year to 6, 8, 10, 12 grade students? So, students take it 

every 2 years, but districts administer it every year?
• Are we given any money to take this survey from the state?
• What questions can we opt out of and what ones can we not? If I remember correctly there are 

some questionable ones that we can't opt out of.
• How are we going to ensure that this information is provided to parents and that schools are 

not telling students they have to take this survey? How do make sure that teachers aren't 
making it a grade to take?



Board Questions 
and Discussion



 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 W. 4th Ave., Kennewick, WA 99336 
 

     Resolution No. 3 2023 - 2024 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3, 2023-2024 
Financial Literacy Instruction  

 

WHEREAS, HB 1915 proposes making financial education instruction a graduation prerequisite 
and a required component of public education, amending RCW 29A.300.468; adding a new section 
to chapter 28A.230 RCW; and creating a new section; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Kennewick School District Board of Directors recognizes that acquiring and 
applying a basic knowledge of personal finance is critical in ensuring that students are prepared 
for success in post-secondary education, work, and life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Kennewick School District Learner Profile specifically sites knowledge and 
application of financial literacy skills as a necessary requisite to students reaching their highest 
potential and graduating well prepared for success in post-secondary education, work, and life – 
the mission of the Kennewick School District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kennewick School District students have taken proactive measures to learn financial 
literacy skills through formation of and participation in school-based financial literacy clubs and 
have actively advocated for financial literacy learning at the state legislature; and  
 
WHEREAS, Kennewick School District is presently conducting a review and will make a 
recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding implementation of a financial literacy 
graduation requirement for students beginning with the Class of 2029;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Kennewick School District Board of 
Directors fully supports financial literacy learning and instruction in its school and will fully 
support any laws enacted requiring financial literacy as a graduation prerequisite for students in 
our state.  
  
Adopted and approved this 13th day of February 2024.  

 

ATTEST _____________________________ _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

            
       _______________________________ 

      Vice President, Board of Directors 
             
       _______________________________ 

      Member of the Board of Directors  
 

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  
              

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  


	School Board Meeting Agenda 02 13 24
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 01 24 24
	Personnel Actions - Certificated
	Personnel Actions - Classified
	Personnel Actions - Extracurricular
	Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 - 2024
	Budget Status Report Ending December 31, 2023
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending December 31, 2023

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Strategies to Improve Graduation Rates and Post Secondary Outcomes
	Capital Budget Update
	Special Education
	Healthy Youth Survey

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 3 2023-2024: Financial Literacy Instruction




